

INSTITUTE OF TRANSPORTATION ENGINEERS

CENTRAL COAST SECTION

Section Procedures Manual

Adopted by the Central Coast Section Board

April 2021

This Central Coast Section Procedures Manual is prepared under and governed by the Section Bylaws. The purpose of this manual is for conducting Section business only. If any procedures identified in this manual are in conflict with the Section Bylaws, the Section Bylaws shall take precedence. Where there is no procedure or policy indicated in this manual and the District has a procedure or policy, it shall govern until such time this manual is revised to cover that procedure or policy. Any changes to the procedures or policies specified in this manual may be revised by the Board. Any temporary or special deviations from the procedures or policies specified in this manual may be approved by the Board.

A Section Executive Board (Board)

The Section Board shall meet at least two times per year. One of these meetings shall occur at the beginning of the year to plan the year activities and develop a budget. The Board shall consist of the following members:

1 Voting Members:

Voting members of the Board are elected by the Section members except for the past president position. The general duties are listed in the Appendix:

- a) Section President
- b) Section Vice President
- c) Section Secretary-Treasurer
- d) Section Past President

2 Non-Voting Members

- a) Committees/Appointed Non-Voting Positions. Committee Chairs are selected by the Section President and serve for a term of one year. Committee Chairs may serve more than one term at the discretion of the President. Committee Chairs may select general members of the Section to assist them in performing duties of the Committee. See the Appendix for duties for each position
 - Student Liaison Committee Chair
 - Fund Raiser Committee Chair
 - Membership Committee Chair
 - Younger Member Group
 - Webmaster

b) Section Administrator

The Section Administrator is a non-voting position that serves in an administrative capacity to assist the Board with management of the Section. The Section President shall nominate, and the position be approved by the Section Board. The appointment of a Section Administrator shall be for a minimum initial term of five (5) years, with unlimited two-year renewals, to ensure continuity in the operation of the Section. A description of Section Administrator duties is included in the Appendix.

B Finances

The Section finances shall be managed in a fiscally responsible manner and follow the following policies:

- 1. Maintain a bank account or accounts to support the Section's activities.
- 2. At a minimum, the Section shall maintain a reserve balance equal to 1.5 times the annual expenses.
- 3. The following members of the Section Board shall signatory on the bank accounts:
 - a. Section President
 - b. Section Vice-President
 - c. Section Secretary-Treasurer
 - d. Section Administrator
- 4. Use of Section credit/debit card shall be limited to expenses specifically related to putting on section meetings such as food, plates and utensils, etc. Expenses such as travel, awards, and section operations costs shall be paid through the reimbursement process.

C Section Meetings

The Section should have at least four (4) Section meetings per year; typically, one meeting every other month. Meeting locations should rotate throughout the Section, with at least one meeting in each of the Section's three counties. Meetings should be held at a minimum as follows:

- 1. At least one of the meetings shall be an Annual Business Meeting for the Board to present the annual budget and initiatives for the year.
- 2. At least one of the meetings should be a vendor focused meeting or "Vendor Show" for vendors to showcase their products to the Section membership.
- 3. At least one of the meetings should be a joint meeting with another Section.

4. At least one of the meetings should be a joint meeting with one of the Student Chapters within the Section.

Section meeting attendance fees for early registration by members shall be determined based on the costs of each meeting being revenue neutral based on estimated member attendance. Fees for same day registration by members shall be a minimum of \$5 more than the early registration fee. Fees for registration for non-members shall be a minimum of \$5 more than the applicable fee for members. The fee differentials are not required for any meetings where it is determined that the early registration for members is free. Reduced fees for students should be offered if feasible.

D District Annual Meeting

It is encouraged that all Board members attend the District Annual Meeting. The Section will reimburse up to \$1,200 for the President to attend the meeting. If the President is unable to attend, or does not wish to receive reimbursement, another member or members of the Board selected by the President may utilize the reimbursement amount.

E Section Annual Fund Raiser

The Section should hold an annual fundraiser (historically a golf tournament) as a social event and to financially support Student Chapters within the Section.

F Section Website

The Section website is managed by the Section Webmaster. The website is used to provide ongoing information about the activities of the Section and posting of Section meeting notices, Section activities, jobs available, information about ITE, and upcoming training opportunities. Meeting notices are prepared by the Secretary-Treasurer and provided to the Section Webmaster for posting. At a minimum the Section Board should post one information article per month. A description of the Section Webmaster duties in included in the Appendix.

G Social Media

The Section should utilize social media to engage with their members and expose ITE to potential members. Social media sites will be managed by the Section Administrator and Section Webmaster and access may be provided to all Board members. Content posted on Section social media sites shall only be relevant to Section activities, shall be factual, and shall not be used to promote personal or political interests, or individual candidates.

H Annual Report

The Section should prepare an Annual Report to be submitted to the District. Submittal of the Annual Report to the District should correspond with the District's submittal deadlines.

I Travel and Reimbursement

Travel or other expenses incurred on behalf of the Section shall be reimbursed if they are approved by the President. Reimbursement requests shall be made using the Section Reimbursement Template (on the website) and submitted to the President for consideration. The President will consider the following when approving the expenses:

- Expenses identified in the adopted budget
- Expenses incurred for the website such as annual domain and hosting fees
- Expense for Board members (typically the President) to attend the District Annual Meeting up to \$1,200. Reimbursable expenses include meeting registration, travel, and lodging.
- Expenses incurred for putting on Section meetings or activities such as the Golf Tournament.
- Expenses incurred by the Past President for acquiring and presenting an appreciation plaque to the outgoing President.
- Reimbursement request has been submitted during or within 30 days of the budget year it was expended.

At the President's request, requested reimbursements may be considered by the Board. If reimbursement is being requested by a voting member of the Section Board, that person may not participate in any vote regarding the reimbursement. The Past President is responsible for considering and approving any reimbursement of the President.

J Scholarship/Student Chapter Financial Support
The Section endeavors to annually support ITE Student Chapters within the Section
(currently, California Polytechnic State University, San Luis Obispo). This may be in the
form of individual scholarships, a general contribution to the student chapter, or a
combination of both. These funds may be used by individuals if awarded as such, or by
the student chapter to assist them with ongoing expenses or attendance at the District
Annual Meeting or Student Leadership Summit. The amount of funds set aside and used
for this purpose will depend on the amount of funds raised during Section fund raising
event(s) and the adopted budget.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON A	APRIL 2, 2021
Section President	 Date

APPROVED BY THE CENTRAL COAST SECTION

Appendix 1 Section Charter





Central Coast Section Charter

ARTICLE I – PREAMBLE

Section 1.1 – As authorized by the Constitution of the INSTITUTE OF TRANSPORTATION ENGINEERS, INC., hereinafter referred to as "ITE", Western District, hereinafter referred to as the "District", as recorded in the minutes of the District Board meeting on January 31, 2020, and as approved by the International Board of Direction of ITE, hereinafter referred to as the "IBOD" as recorded in the minutes of its meeting on July 23, 2020, grants this Charter for the Central Coast Section of ITE, hereinafter referred to as the "Section."

Section 1.2 – This Charter shall be effective beginning January 1, 2021 and shall remain in effect, including any amendments, until rescinded by the District Board.

Section 1.3 – This Charter shall, on the date it becomes effective, supersede any previous charter or constitution of a Section enrolling members from the designated area and shall annul any bylaws of such a Section which may be in conflict with it.

ARTICLE II – AREA AND PURPOSE

Section 2.1 – The area designated as that of this Section shall be the Counties of San Luis Obispo, Santa Barbara, and Ventura, California, or as the area shall be established from time to time by the District Board, or as the area shall be established from time to time as an outcome of amendments to the area designated as the District by the IBOD.

Section 2.2 – To assist in advancing the purposes shown below, this Section shall be exclusively administered and operated to receive, administer, and expend funds for charitable and educational purposes within the meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. The purpose of this Section shall be to:

- Serve as the primary affiliation for ITE members at the local level;
- Support the overall goals and objectives of ITE;
- Support District activities and coordinate with the District in carrying out the Section mission and purpose;
- Financially support and coordinate with Chapters within the Section;
- Foster closer association of ITE members;
- Encourage members to share knowledge;
- Consider local transportation issues;
- Collaborate with other local transportation professionals on matters of common interest;
- Present points of view consistent with established ITE policies;
- Support and mentor students and student chapters within the Section.

Section 2.3 – This Section is organized exclusively for charitable and educational purposes within the

meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Charter, the Bylaws of this Section or the Constitution of the Institute of Transportation Engineers, the Section shall not carry on any other activities not permitted to be carried on by an organization exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (or the corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue law) or by an organization contributions to which are deductible under Section 170(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue code of 1986 (or the corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue law). No substantial part of the activities of this Section shall be the carrying on of propaganda or otherwise attempting to influence legislation, and this Section shall not participate in or intervene in any political campaign on behalf of any candidate for public office.

Section 2.4 – No part of the net earnings of this Section shall inure to the benefit of or be distributable to its directors, officers, or other private persons, except that this Section shall be authorized and empowered to pay reasonable compensation for services actually rendered and to make payments and distributions in furtherance of its purposes and objectives set forth in Article II hereof.

Section 2.5 – Upon the winding up and dissolution of this Section, after paying or adequately providing for the debts and obligations of this Section, the remaining assets shall be distributed to a nonprofit fund, foundation, or corporation, which is organized and operated exclusively for charitable, educational, and/or scientific purposes and which has been established as having tax exempt status under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Section 2.6 – In any taxable year in which the organization is a private foundation as described in Internal Revenue Code 501 the organization shall distribute its income for said period at such time and manner as not to subject it to tax under Internal Revenue Code 4942, and the organization shall not:

- engage in any act of self-dealing as defined in Internal Revenue Code 4941 (d),
- retain any excess business holdings as defined in Internal Revenue Code 4943 (c),
- make any investments in such manner as to subject the organization to tax under Internal Revenue Code 4944; or
- make any taxable expenditures as defined in Internal Revenue Code 4944 or corresponding provisions of any subsequent Federal tax law.

ARTICLE III – MEMBERSHIP

Section 3.1 – ITE members of any grade who, according to ITE records, are located within the area designated for the Section shall be a member of the Section.

Section 3.2 – Any ITE member may become a member of the Section, without residing in the Section area, upon payment of Section dues to ITE.

Section 3.3 – ITE members who are members of the Section shall be entitled to all privileges of the Section, except that Student members may not vote or hold elective office in the Section.

Section 3.4 – Any Section member whose ITE membership has been forfeited shall also forfeit membership in the Section. Any Section member who is placed on inactive status by ITE shall also be placed on inactive status by the Section Board. Members will be reinstated to membership in the Section only if reinstated to membership in ITE.

ARTICLE IV – GOVERNMENT

Section 4.1 – The government of the Section shall be vested in its officers, directors, and representatives who shall constitute a Section Board.

Section 4.2 – The Section Board shall manage the affairs of the Section in conformity with the provisions of this Charter, the policies and procedures of the District, actions of the District Board, the Constitution and policies of ITE, and the actions of the IBOD.

Section 4.3 – Upon the adoption of this Charter, the existing Section Board shall expeditiously adopt bylaws that set forth the governance and administration of the Section in accordance with this Charter.

Section 4.4 – The Section bylaws shall set forth the structure of the Section Board in accordance with this Charter and shall provide the manner of nominating and electing Section officers, directors, and representatives, and specifying their terms of office.

Section 4.5 – The Section bylaws shall establish and govern appointment of committees as otherwise provided heretofore, number and times of meetings, methods of amending bylaws, and such other matters as the Section may desire, provided such bylaws do not conflict with this Charter, the policies and procedures of the District, actions of the District Board, the Constitution, and policies of ITE or policies of the IBOD.

Section 4.6 – The bylaws of the Section may be adopted, and amended after adoption, by an affirmative vote of two-thirds of the Section Board. At the Section Board's discretion, the amendment can be put up to the full membership for a vote in accordance with the voting procedures established in the bylaws. Any dues increase in excess of 20% and special assessments require a vote by the membership.

Section 4.7 – Bylaws or amendments to the bylaws of the Section shall take effect thirty days after being approved by the District Board. At any time the District Board may annul or amend any part of the Section's bylaws which it considers to be contrary to the Section Charter, the policies and procedures of the District, actions of the District Board, ITE Constitution, or the best interests of ITE by giving notice in writing to the Section.

ARTICLE V – ADMINISTRATION

Section 5.1 – The Section may issue a Charter establishing a Chapter within its area upon the written request of voting members residing in the proposed Chapter area. The Charter shall be in a form approved by the IBOD. The Section may rescind a Chapter Charter in the manner provided in the Chapter Charter.

Section 5.2 – The Section shall financially support and coordinate with any Chapters established within its area.

Section 5.3 – The Section is responsible for any Chapters and student chapters within their area.

ARTICLE VI – RELATION OF SECTION TO DISTRICT AND ITE

Section 6.1 – The Section shall not speak for the District or ITE unless authorized in the particular matter by the District Board or the IBOD, respectively. The Section may speak for itself on matters pertinent to

its geographical area.

Section 6.2 – Sections are encouraged to develop relationships with other not for profit associations at the same level in which the Section operates in the development of meetings and educational programs for ITE members. The Section should not enter into any formal partnerships or agreements, with either national or international organizations, without consent from the ITE International Executive Director.

Section 6.3 – Names and contact information of all elected officers of the Section and the dates on which the terms of each begins and expires shall be reported in writing to the District Board and to ITE Headquarters within 30 days after election.

Section 6.4 – The Section Board shall submit a written annual report to the District Board each year. The report shall include a summary of the Section's activities for the previous year.

Section 6.5 – The District and ITE will not be responsible for debts contracted by the Section. No dues will be required to be paid by the Section to ITE or the District.

Section 6.6 – The Section may charge annual dues as provided in the Section Bylaws. ITE shall bill all dues at the time of billing ITE dues, and upon collection, remit to the Section. Annual dues for Sections shall be levied so as to cover time periods identical to those covered by annual dues of ITE.

ARTICLE VII – AMENDMENT OF CHARTER

Section 7.1 – The Section's elected officers will be notified in writing by the District Board of any proposed amendment to, or withdrawal of, this Charter so that the Section may have an opportunity for a hearing before the District Board concerning the proposed amendment or withdrawal. The amendment with or without change shall be submitted by the District Board to the IBOD for approval and shall become effective on the date determined by the District Board.

Section 7.2 – The Section may petition the District Board to amend this Charter or rescind withdrawal action. The District Board shall meet and act on the petition within six (6) months of its receipt. If the petition is approved, the District Board shall then petition the IBOD for approval of the proposed amendment. The IBOD shall act on this petition in the same manner as provided for amending the District Charter. Amendments to the Section Charter initiated by petition from the Section shall become effective upon approval by the District Board, then by the IBOD.

Subscribed for the District Board of the Western District of the Institute of Transportation Engineers

Neelan Donman	August 14, 2020
Neelam Dorman	

ITE Western District President

Appendix 2 Section Bylaws







ITE Central Coast Section Bylaws

ARTICLE I – NAME AND PURPOSE

Section 1.1 – As granted and chartered by the Institute of Transportation Engineers, Inc., hereinafter referred to as "ITE," Western District, hereinafter referred to as the "District," the name of this organization shall be ITE Central Coast Section, hereinafter referred to as the "Section".

Section 1.2 – The mission and purpose of this Section shall be to:

- Support the overall goals and objectives of ITE;
- Support District activities and coordinate with the District in carrying out the Section mission and purpose;
- Financially support and coordinate with Chapters within the Section,
- Foster closer association of ITE members;
- Encourage members to share knowledge;
- Consider local transportation issues;
- Collaborate with other local transportation professionals on matters of common interest;
- Present points of view consistent with established ITE policies; and
- Support and mentor students and student chapters within the Section.

The Section shall be exclusively administered and operated to receive, administer, and expend funds for charitable and educational purposes within the meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986.

Section 1.3 – The Section logo shall be developed by the Section Board, following guidance in the "ITE Logos and Specifications." The authorized use of the ITE International logo shall be determined by ITE's Executive Director.

Section 1.4 – This corporation is a nonprofit public benefit corporation and is not organized for the private gain of any person. It is organized for public purposes.

ARTICLE II – MEMBERSHIP

Section 2.1 – Any ITE member who resides within the geographic area designated for the Section in its Charter with ITE, and who is in good standing with ITE, shall be a member of the Section. Throughout these Bylaws, the term "resides" refers to the individual's preferred ITE mailing address, at home, place of business, or educational institution.

Section 2.2 – Any ITE member who does not reside within the Section area may join the Section upon payment of the appropriate dues to ITE.

Section 2.3 – Section members shall be entitled to all the privileges of the Section except that Student Members may not vote or hold elective office in the Section.

Section 2.4 – Any Section member whose ITE membership has been forfeited shall also forfeit membership in the Section. Any Section member who is placed on inactive status by ITE shall also be placed on inactive status by the Section Board. Members will be reinstated to membership in the Section only if reinstated to membership in ITE.

ARTICLE III – DUES AND ASSESSMENTS

Section 3.1 – Annual Section dues shall be established by the Section Board and shall be billed by ITE at the time of billing ITE dues. At least 120 days prior to the beginning of ITE's fiscal year, the Section shall notify ITE Headquarters of the amount established for Section dues for the following fiscal year.

Section 3.2 – The Section Board may not increase annual Section dues by more than 20 percent in any year without a vote of the Section voting membership following the procedures as specified in Article X - Amendments.

Section 3.3 – Special assessments proposed by the Section Board may not be applied without a vote of the Section voting membership following the procedures as specified in Article X - Amendments.

Section 3.4 – Any member whose dues are more than three months in arrears to ITE shall lose the right to vote. If dues become one year in arrears and their membership is terminated by ITE, by extension their membership to the Section is also terminated. Restoration of membership in the Section is contingent upon the clearing of arrears and reinstatement of membership by ITE.

Section 3.5 – All Honorary and Student Members of ITE shall not be subject to Section dues.

ARTICLE IV – OFFICERS AND BOARD

Section 4.1 – The elective officers of the Section shall be {at a minimum}: President, Vice President, and Secretary-Treasurer. Officers shall be elected annually for a term of one year and shall take office January 1. No member shall occupy the same elective office of President, Vice President, or Secretary-Treasurer for more than two consecutive terms.

Section 4.2 – The voting members of the Section Board shall consist of the Elective Officers of the Section described in Section 4.1 and the Past President. All members of the Section Board must be voting members of the Section. No member shall occupy simultaneously more than one office on the Section Board and no member shall occupy the same elective office for more than two consecutive terms.

Section 4.3 – One (1) Representative from the Section shall serve on the District Board. The Section Representative must be a voting member of the Section Board. Each Section Representative's term of office shall be for a period of one (1) year.

Section 4.4 – The Section Board shall assign the role of Section Representative to the District Board to the Past President.

Section 4.5 – In the event of a vacancy occurring in the office of Section President, the unexpired term shall be filled by the Vice President. In the event of a vacancy occurring in any other elective office as per Section 4.1, the Section Board, at its discretion, may appoint a Board member to fill the unexpired term or may choose to temporarily assign the respective duties of the vacant position among the remaining elected Section Board members. If a vacancy occurs in the office of Past President, the Past President whose term has most recently expired and who remains a member of the Section may fill the unexpired term.

In the event of a vacancy in the office of Section Representative, the Section Board shall appoint a member who was previously elected to the Section Board, to serve as Section Representative until the next Section election. However, if the Section fails to do so within 60 days, the District Board shall appoint a qualified member from the Section to serve out the unexpired term.

Section 4.6 – The Section Board shall report the names and contact information of its officers and the beginning and ending dates of their term of offices to the District Board within 30 days after their election or appointment.

ARTICLE V – NOMINATION AND ELECTION OF OFFICERS

Section 5.1 – The Section President shall appoint a Nominating Committee chaired by the immediate Past President of the Section.

Section 5.2 – The Nominating Committee shall nominate one or more qualified candidates for each office that is up for election. Written consent to serve in the office if elected, must be received from each person nominated.

Section 5.3 – Elections may be held by written ballot or electronically as prescribed in Article IX - Voting and Voter Eligibility, Section 9.2.

Section 5.4 – The timeline for the election of Officers shall be as follows:

Section 5.4.1 – The date of the end of balloting will be determined by the Section Board in all instances.

Section 5.4.2 – The Nominating Committee shall transmit its list of nominees and their written consent to serve to the Section President who shall immediately transmit it to the Section Board at least seventy-five (75) days prior to the end of balloting.

Section 5.4.3 – At least sixty (60) days before the end of balloting, the Section shall announce to the voting members of the Section a list of the candidates nominated by the Nominating Committee.

Section 5.4.4 – At least thirty (30) days before the end of balloting, the Section shall send to each eligible voter a final ballot or electronic message with instructions for voting.

Section 5.4.5 – The votes shall be tabulated within ten (10) days from the end of balloting. The Section Board shall be informed immediately, followed by notification to the candidates.

Section 5.5 – The candidate receiving the highest number of votes for each office shall be declared elected. In case of a tie vote, refer to Article IX - Voting and Voter Eligibility, Section 9.6.

Section 5.6 – Terms of the elective officers, as per Article IV - Officers and Board, Section 4.1, and Section Representatives shall begin on January 1 and expire on December 31.

ARTICLE VI – GOVERNMENT

Section 6.1 – The Section President shall preside at meetings of the Section and of the Section Board. In the absence of the President, the Vice President shall preside at meetings and discharge the President's duties.

Section 6.2 – Official transaction of business at any Section Board meeting requires a quorum. A majority of the Section Board shall constitute a quorum. Once a quorum of the Section Board is established, the affirmative vote of a majority of the Section Board voting members in attendance shall be necessary to take any action. In case of a tie vote, the action is not approved.

Section 6.3 – The Section President shall be an ex-officio member of all committees, except the Nominating Committee.

Section 6.4 - The Section President, in concurrence with the Section Board, shall create committees and appoint chairs as may be desirable, with the approval of the Section Board.

Section 6.5 – The Section Board may establish a Section Administrator position. The Administrator shall have a voice at all meetings of the Section Board and should be included in all Board communications but be a non-voting participant of the Board meetings.

Section 6.6 – The membership may, by petition to the Section Board, initiate a vote to determine if a Section officer shall be removed from office. The petition must include at least 20 percent of the eligible voters in the Section. Within 30 days after receipt of the petition by the Section Board, the following question shall be submitted to each voting member in the Section for vote by secret ballot: "Shall (Name) be removed from the office of (Office)?" Should the affirmative be carried by two-

thirds majority, and at least 25 percent of the eligible voters cast ballots, the office shall be declared vacant and the vacancy filled in the manner consistent with these Bylaws.

Section 6.7 – The membership may, by petition to the Section Board, initiate a vote to determine if any action of the Section Board shall be rescinded. The petition must include at least 20 percent of the eligible voters in the Section. Within 30 days after receipt of the petition by the Section Board, the petitioned action shall be immediately suspended. The Section Board must either rescind the disputed action or within 30 days the following question: "Should the following action of the Section Board be rescinded?" must be submitted to the Section membership for a vote. Should the positive carry a majority, and at least 25 percent of the eligible voters cast ballots, the Section Board action will be rescinded.

Section 6.8 – The Section Board should establish and maintain a Section Procedures Manual for conducting the business of the Section. Such procedures should be in writing and should be contained in a manner available for viewing by members of the Section. Procedures may be established or modified by a majority vote of Section Board members. Section Procedures may not be in violation of the Bylaws. Once established, they should guide the actions of the Board and the Section as long as they are applicable.

ARTICLE VII – MEETINGS

Section 7.1 – There should be an organizational meeting of the Section Board and its committees to plan the new year's administrative functions of the Section including development of line item budgets, preparation of a calendar of meetings, establishment of committee chairs and discussion of any initiatives or other pertinent matters necessary for the conduct of the Section.

Section 7.2 – Technology such as emails and/or telephone or video conference calls may be employed for transacting business and increasing participation of board members at all Section Board meetings.

Section 7.3 – The Section President may call unanticipated additional meetings of the Section Board, via conference call, as need dictates or upon receipt of a petition signed by the majority of the other members of the Section Board.

Section 7.4 – There shall be a minimum of two meetings of the Section each year, one of which shall be the Annual Business Meeting. The Section Board shall set the date, time and place of regular Section meetings.

Section 7.5 – Robert's Rules of Order shall govern the conduct of Section Board meetings in all cases to which they are applicable and shall not be in conflict with ITE's Constitution, other procedural rules of the Section Board, and these Bylaws.

ARTICLE VIII – SECTIONS AND CHAPTERS

Section 8.1 – The Section Board may issue Charters establishing Chapters within its area upon the written request of voting members residing in a proposed Chapter area. The Charter shall be in a form approved

by the International Board of Direction. The Section Board may rescind any Charter in the manner provided in such Charter.

Section 8.2 – The Section shall financially support and coordinate with any Chapters established within its area.

Section 8.3 – The Section shall support and coordinate with any Student Chapters established within its area.

Section 8.4 – If the Charter for a Chapter is under consideration for revocation, the appropriate Chapter leadership must be notified in writing of the contemplated action a minimum of 30 days prior to the Section Board meeting in which the revocation of the Charter will be discussed. Chapter leadership has the right to appear in person before the Section Board to discuss the proposed revocation of the Charter. If a Charter is revoked, the revocation date is at the discretion of the Section Board.

ARTICLE IX – VOTING AND VOTER ELIGIBILITY

Section 9.1 – Any member of ITE in good standing, excluding student members, shall have voting privileges in the Section if they meet the requirements in Article II-Membership.

Section 9.2 – Voting for elective positions, increased dues when required, special assessments, amendments to these Bylaws, petitions to amend the Section Charter, and other matters so designated by the Section Board shall be by secret ballot. The exact methods, written or electronic, used to conduct elections including ensuring secrecy and validation of votes shall be as prescribed and approved by the Section Board.

Section 9.3 – The timelines for voting shall be as indicated in Article V - Nominations and Elections of Officers and Article X - Amendments of these Bylaws.

Section 9.4 – The Section President shall appoint a Tellers Committee.

Section 9.5 – Final ballots returned by eligible voters to the designee of the President or the tabulated electronic results shall be reviewed by the Tellers Committee. The Tellers Committee shall report the results to the Section President.

Section 9.6 – Except as stated elsewhere within these Bylaws, the candidate, resolution, or petition receiving the highest number of votes, through a membership vote, shall be declared elected or approved. In case of a tie vote, the Section Board shall make the final decision. In the case of a tied election, the outgoing Section Board, excluding any Board member who is a candidate for the position subject to a tie vote, shall select one of the candidates. In the case of amendments, increasing dues by more than the maximum specified in *Article III - Dues and Assessments, Section 3.2* or special assessments, the adoption provisions of *Article X - Amendments* shall apply.

ARTICLE X – AMENDMENTS

Adopted by Central Coast Section Board:

Section 10.1 – Proposals to amend these Bylaws, increase the dues by more than the maximum specified in Article III-Dues and Assessments, Section 3.2, or apply special assessments may be made by resolution of the Section Board or written petition of at least five percent of the voting members of the Section.

Section 10.2 – Bylaws of the Section may be amended after adoption by an affirmative vote of two thirds of the Section Board. Amendments to the Bylaws must be approved by the District after adoption and shall take effect in accordance with the Section Charter. At the Section Board's discretion, the amendment can instead be put up to the full membership for a vote according to the procedures outlined in Section 10.3.

Section 10.3 – Any proposal to increase Section dues by more than the maximum specified in Article III - Dues and Assessments, Section 3.2 or apply special assessments must be submitted to the voting membership and shall be on the agenda of the next succeeding Section Meeting occurring not less than 30 days subsequently. Such proposals may be amended by majority vote of the members present at the meeting in any manner pertinent to the original proposal. The proposal, in form as amended, shall be submitted within 30 days after the meeting to the qualified voters and voted upon not less than 30 nor more than 45 days after the meeting. An affirmative vote of two thirds of all ballots cast by qualified voters shall be necessary for the adoption of such proposals.

Approved by the District Board of Western District of the Institute of Transportation Engineers

Kartlihat	May 13, 2020
Kathryn Kleinschmidt	Date
ITE Central Coast Section President	
Approved by Western District Board:	
Neelaun Donman	August 14, 2020
Neelam Dorman	
ITE Western District President	

Board Position Duties

- 1. Section President: The President will:
 - a. Preside at all meetings of the Section.
 - b. Represent the Section at official ITE meetings, events, and gatherings.
 - c. Appoint Committee Chair positions.
 - d. Recommend appointment of Section Administrator.
 - e. Appoint members of the Nominating Committee (as required by the Bylaws)
 - f. Prepare an Annual Report with assistance from other members of the Board.
 - g. Coordinate the work of the various committees.
 - h. Collaborate with Section Administrator and Section Webmaster on website and social media posts.
 - i. See that all necessary records are maintained.
 - j. See that all necessary reports are prepared.
 - k. Perform all other duties ordinarily associated with the office.
- 2. Section Vice President: The Vice President will:
 - a. In the absence or incapacity, or at the direction of the President, perform the duties of that office.
 - b. Develop programs and speakers for Section Meetings.
 - c. Coordinate the Annual Vendor Show meeting.
 - d. Make Section meeting and luncheon arrangements.
 - e. Collaborate with Section Administrator and Section Webmaster on website and social media posts.
 - f. Introduce programs and/or presenters at Section Meetings.
 - g. Assist the President in coordinating the activities of the Section.
 - h. Assist the Section Administrator in the filing of taxes.
 - i. Accept such duties as the President assigns.
- 3. Section Secretary-Treasurer: The Secretary-Treasurer will:
 - a. Send meeting notices to the membership.
 - b. Collaborate with Section Administrator and Section Webmaster on website and social media posts.
 - c. Collect fees at meetings.
 - d. Keep records of all Section activities.
 - e. Keep minutes of all Section meetings and Executive Board meetings.
 - f. Prepare a draft budget with input from the other Board members to be presented to the Board for approval.
 - g. Collect dues from International ITE and deposit them into the Section account.
 - h. Serve as custodian of all Section funds.
 - i. Keep records of dues payments.
 - j. Maintain Section fiscal accounts and records.
 - k. Accept such duties as the President assigns.
- 4. Section Past President: The Past President will:
 - a. Serve as the Section's representative to the Western District Board

- b. Prepare Section reports for District Board meetings.
- c. When requested by the editor of WesternITE, submit a summary report of Section and member activities and meetings.
- d. Cultivate candidates from time to time as necessary for Section Board vacancies and upcoming elections.
- e. Chair the Nominating Committee to present candidates to the Board to consider for Section office (See Bylaws for procedures).
- f. Collaborate with Section Administrator and Section Webmaster on website and social media posts.
- g. Acquire and present an appreciation plaque to the outgoing President
- h. Accept such duties as the President assigns.

5. Student Liaison Committee Chair

- a. Maintain lines of communication with the Student Chapter(s) Board, Student Chapter Advisor(s) and Section Board.
- b. Provide regular reports to the Section Board of Student Chapter activities and requests.
- c. Assist with joint meeting(s) between the Student Chapter(s) and the Section
- d. Accept such duties as the President assigns.

6. Fund Raiser Committee Chair

- a. Arrange and manage fund raising efforts.
- b. Keep records of procedures for managing fundraising efforts (such as the process for putting on a golf tournament).
- c. Prepare an annual budget for fundraising efforts to be submitted to the Secretary-Treasurer during the Section budget preparation.
- d. Collaborate with Section Administrator and Section Webmaster on website and social media posts.
- e. Prepare and submit a report summarizing the results of fundraising efforts.
- f. Accept such duties as the President assigns.

7. Membership Committee Chair

- a. Keep a complete membership roll.
- b. Encourage new members to join.
- c. Provide membership updates periodically for the Section Board including membership trends.
- d. Collaborate with Section Administrator and Section Webmaster on website and social media posts.
- e. Accept such duties as the President assigns.

8. Younger Member Group

- a. Outreach with younger members typically defined as those with ten years' experience or less.
- b. Work with the Student Liaison to recruit new graduates.
- c. Provide support to younger members as they navigate their careers.
- d. Arrange general meetings separate from Section events (such as informal game nights, or technical tours)
- e. Accept such duties as the President assigns.

9. Webmaster

- a. Maintain the Section website (currently www.centralcoastite.org) to be current with all contemporary information, such as:
 - i. Meeting dates
 - ii. Meeting summaries
 - iii. Executive Board
 - iv. Fundraisers
 - v. Minutes
 - vi. Reports
 - vii. Results of Elections
 - viii. Information as directed by the Section President
 - ix. Job postings provided to the Section
- b. Prepare and/or coordinate social media posts on LinkedIn, Twitter, and/or Facebook (or other social media sites as assigned).
- c. Maintain the section domain, and report to the Board any expenses and due dates required.
- d. Accept such duties as the President assigns.

10. Section Administrator

- a. Serve as an advisor to the Section Board of parliamentary procedure (*Robert's Rules of Order*), historical practices of the Section, and other information as necessary to support Board decisions.
- b. Maintain a historical record of Section documents, including reports, minutes, and financial records.
- c. Support the Section Webmaster in maintenance of the Section website, including any and all historical documents.
- d. Collaborate on social media efforts.
- e. Maintain the Section's incorporation and tax-exempt statuses, including annual reports and tax filings to governmental agencies (State of California, Franchise Tax Board, Internal Revenue Service).
- f. Accept such duties as the President assigns.